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The Franklin County Courthouse is a massive red brick and limestone
Romanesque Revival building measuring 102 x 76 feet, with a central tower rising
133 feet. Although essentially rectangular in plan, the structure displays
a remarkable complexity, variety, and fineness in detailing. Set on a battered
and rusticated high stone foundation, the two story brick building makes an
extensive and effective use of structurally integrated stone ornament and decorative
brickwork. The noteable brick features include the machicolated cornice, the
circular corner features of the four central pavilions and the clusters
of circular chimneys. There is stone ornamentation at all the windows; at the
first floor the rectangular windows have rusticated stone surrounds. The
windows of the second floor and attic have stone circular and segmental arches.
The finest stonework is to be found in the carved ornamentation of the pavil-
ions' parapeted gables, and the stone south porch which is Richardsonian in its
forcefulness and bulk. The roof is hipped and covered with slate colored as-
phalt shingles. Originally it was covered with slate.

The domed clock tower is also of Romanesque Revival style. It is framed in
iron and covered with pressed metalwork. There are clock faces on each of the
four sides and four classical figures stand at each corner of the tower. A
fifth figure, Blind Justice, originally stood atop the dome.

The county offices on the first floor all open onto a central rotunda with
an elegant marble floor. The county courtrcom occupies the central portion
of the second floor with judge's chambers, law library, jury room, and con-
ference ‘rooms surrounding.’ The interior is richly endowed with woodwork in
the Romanesque Revival style surrounding the doors and windows and supporting
arched ceilings. ‘

The county plans to clean and restore the exterior and to replace the statue
of Blind Justice. The interior is currently undergoing restoration and re-
furbishing and every effort is being made to preserve the historic and
architectural integrity of the building.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

This building is the third of Franklin County's three courthouses. Construction
on the building began in 1890 and was completed in 1891. The architect was T.D.
Allen of Minneapolis.

The primary significance of this structure is due to the architectural design
which reflects some of the best features of the Romanesque Revival style popular
in the late 19th century. This style is apparent in the general mass of the buil-
ding, the forms used in the battering of some of the lower walls, and in the .
fenestrations and the ornamentation used. This ornamentation involves both the
combining of the brick and stone in patterns and in the carved stone, especially
at the north and south entrances.

Of secondary importance is the changing concept of county government during this
period. The change from small simple utilitarian structures often of frame
construction to more elaborate quarters is well reflected in the Franklin
County Courthouse. The need for more space in order to lend greater dignity to
the contained activities, and to illustrate the prosperity of the region can be
seen as motives in the design and construction of the building.

The courthouse is located in the center of the business district of Hampton, and
its location typifies midwest county seats of this era. This building adds
grace and dignity to the surrounding area, and is a pioneer landmark in the
county. The building is structurally sound and worthy of preservation as a
historic place.
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